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Oreorta: RATLIRODA D to/secia compete with the larger and more
show, centrally located Oneonta. Still,
visit the  the Ulster and Delaware Railroad

diary “Horace [her husband's
brother] came yesterday on the first
mail train on the Extension from
Bloomville to Oneonta.” East
Meredith residents remembered
that it was engine No. 9 with five
coach cars and two baggage cars.
Engine No. 9 would later be
involved in the U & D’s only
serious passenger train accident in
1911 in Halcotwville, NY. Engine
No. 39 collided head on with
Engine No. 9 which was hauling
the paycar. Only railroad employ-
ees were injured or killed, but
Engine No. 9 was so badly dam-
aged, it had to be scrapped.

Did the railroad do what the
inhabitants of East Meredith
expected? Business in East
Meredith boomed in 1900, two
creameries were built to botte milk
and Hanford Mills began produc-
ing various tool handles and milk
crates. They shipped the handles
to Ohio and New Hampshire on
the railroad, while the crates went
to New York City and closer.
However, East Meredith could not
compete and it did not “put
Oneconta in the shade.” The
Hanfords stopped making handles
within five years. Their factory was
just not big enough. Soon, milk
crates were being made of metal,

Oneonta fair or go to high school
(East Meredith’s school only went
to ninth grade). Soon, automobiles
became popular and people did not
need the train. East Meredith re-
sident, Ben Beames even purchased
a bus to take East Meredith stu-
dents to the Oneonta high school.
In the end, the last passenger
train ran through East Meredith in
1954, and by the mid- to late-
1960s, the U & D Railroad could
not pay for itself. The actual Ulster
and Delaware Company already
had financial difficulties in 1932

did provide a useful connection to
the outside world. With a dona-
tion from the Kelso family,
Hanford Mills Museum now owns
over a mile of the original railroad
bed. Today, a section of it still
lives on as the Delaware and Ulster
Railride in Arkville, New York.
East Meredith still has a connection
to it, as tourists visit both the
railride and Museum. They make
the connection between the two by
bus, but people can still ride the

railroad and see Hanford Mills in
the same day. '

This photograph of Engine No. 9, running behind the Hanford's mill, was

taken about 1910 not too long before its fatal accident in 1911,
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The Edger

by Robert Grassi

In February 2000, the museum
purchased an edger to add to our
machinery collections in the mill.
In operating a sawmill, during the
initial sizing process, the log is
reduced to a square cant and slabs
are produced. Typically, sawmills
produce two types of slabs. Slabs
containing one sawn side were
traditionally cut up and used for
firewood. Today, many sawmills

chop them up into chips. The two

with multiple saw blades (three or
more), are capable of also reducing
large boards into several smaller

boards. Edgers continue to provide

valuable service today in modern
sawmills.
Our machine dates from the

early 1900’s and was manufactured
by the R. J. Tower Ironworks out of

Greenville, Michigan. Well de-
signed and efficient, the Tower
machine was one of the more

movable saw. The cast iron framed
center section contains the saw
mandrel (including blades and
drive pulley) and the power feed
rollers. The wooden framed out-
feed table is 84 inches long and has
two rollers. All and all, the entire
length of the machine is just less
than 18 feet. The color of the
Tower edger’s iron parts were
originally machinery gray and its
wooden parts bright red. They

sided sawn
slabs, or
"flitches” as they
are sometimes
called, are made
more usable and
saleable when
their waned
edges are
removed. A
waned edge on a
board contains
the outside edge
of the log often
including the
bark. Many

Two edging saws can be seen in this catalog picture. One stayed
stationary, while the other could be moved to cut different board widths.

designed edgers to
be either right
hand or left hand
to best use a
specific mill’s
layout and to
operate in con-
junction with
either a left or
right-hand saw-
mill. A left hand
set-up has the
guide fence and, in
our case, the fixed
saw blade with the
drive pulley on the

smaller circular

sawmills (and, traditionally, up-
and-down and muley sawmills)
remove or edge this wane from their
slabs on their mill's carriage. We
have done this on occasion here at
the Museum. The process is time
consuming and very wasteful.

Only one side can be edged at a
time using this method. Each
board can be edged individually,
but only at a great expense of time
and handling. To save time, a
group of slabs is edged together. As
one might imagine, it is impossible
to get the maximum usable board
footage out of each and every board
edged in this manner. Edgers were
designed early on to edge boards far
more efficiently. They sawed both
edges in one pass. Larger edgers

popular edgers to find their way
into many sawmills in our area.
TOWCI' Cdg{:rs WEeEre manufactured
from the 1890’s to 1955. They
produced many models. The
smallest had a capacity to handle
boards up to 27 inches in width.
The largest produced could cut 60
inch boards. The museum’s
machine is a two bladed, 27 inch
One 14-inch saw blade is

fixed, and the other is movable

model.

(while in operation). It is capable
of sawing any width from a mini-
mum of 1% inches to a maximum
of 20 inches and up to 4 inches in
thickness. The wooden framed in-
feed table is 96 inches long and
contains three rollers, a guide fence
and the controls for setting the

left as the operator
faces the machine. A left-handed
edger worked best with a right-
hand sawmill, and a right-hand
edger with a left-hand sawmill.
The reason is quite simple, time
and energy efficient material flow.

At this point, very little is
known about the Hanford’s original
edger. We know that they listed an
edger among the machinery auc-
tioned from the mill in 1965. We
also have evidence of its existence
through an interview conducted by
former executive director Keith Bott
with J. Ralph Hanford (Horace
Hanford’s son) dated March 13,
1985. In this interview, Ralph
even disclosed its original operating
position. Unfortunately we know
Con't. on page 11
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Edger - con't. from page 10

little else. What was the make of
the original machine? We have no
documentation of the manufac-
turer. We do know Chase Turbine
Manufacturing Company of
Orange, Massachusetts (the same
company from whom D.J. Hanford
purchased a sawmill, shingle mill,
shingle packer and a 36-inch cutoff
saw in the 1880’s) was a dealer in
Tower edgers for many years. So
there is a possibility that the
Hanford’s edger was a Tower
machine purchased through the
Chase company. '

What was its size, how many
saw blades did it have and was it
left-hand or right-hand configured?
We know where the Hanfords
operated the original machine.
Close examination of the area
revealed flat belt cutouts through
the original floorboards. The
edger’s location in the sawmill
would suggest the Hanford’s
machine was most likely left-hand
but we have no absolute way of
determining this with the available
physical evidence. The size of the
cutouts revealed that a flat belt
drive no larger than 6 inches
powered the machine. This would
not be enough supplied horse
power to support a large, multiple
bladed (three or more) edger.
Finally, its location in the sawmill
would suggest that it could be no
larger than 36 inches without
affecting the operation of the
sawmill and general materials flow
throughout the mill building.

We are very fortunate to have
found an edger of this quality and
vintage that fits our mill’s specific
criteria so well. Plans for the future
are to return this machine to active
service in the location of the
Hanford’s original edger. Please
make a point to come and visit our
newest addition to the mill’s

machinery collection. ﬁ;g

Join us for Hanford Mills Museum's 1st

Spring Exploration Festival

Pick up a free ;};&e a ur!k
evergreen earn 4 o1t
seedling. edible &
medicinal wild
plants.

Try a fly-

tying class.
Expigr: the bﬁ of Bring your children

Kortright Creek. for the fishing derby. =

Call Hanford Mill Museum at (607) 278-5744 or 1-800-295-4992

for more information

Saturday, May 5, 2001
10:00 am to 5:00 pm

Two miniature replicas by Fernwood of Maine:
~The Mill Building and
A - The John Hanford Farmhouse
(see below - Both can be purchased
at the Museum Store along with
other mill related books &

\o  products)
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Sharon Sepulveda
Thomas & Susan Sikes
Robert Sterchack

Jane Tuttle

Ron & Irene Zablocki
Marvin Zachow

We would also like to thank the
following people for making
collections donations in the year
2000:

Elizabeth A. Botting

Rose E. Churchill

Delaware Draft Horse Club

Joan Dorr

Fred Frewert

Dorothy H. Friedmann

Gilbert Lake Srate Park

Jay Hager

John Hamilton

Ken Kellerhouse

Jane McCone

Richard Mostert

William O'Dell, Jr.

Dennis R. Smith

Donald & Joanne Westcott

Walter Wissert

&

Corn Bread

As you look through the pages of Millwork, you might notice we
mention Elizabeth Hanford and her diaries a lot. Elizabeth used the space
in these often tiny diaries to record daily weather, the work she did and
the people she visited or who visited her. For an unknown reason, in the
1866 diary Elizabeth only wrote in January and February. The rest is
blank except for nineteen recipes.

Below, we have reproduced one of Elizabeth’s 1866 recipes. We also
converted it for use in a modern kitchen and speeded up the baking time
with a hotter oven. Keep in mind that when Elizabeth says “sweet milk”
she means fresh milk rather than sour milk. Some recipes use sour milk
(an acid) to help the baking soda make the bread rise, but Elizabeth’s

recipe uses molasses instead, which is also acidic.

@ A\ Elizabeth Hanford's
/ o owesd ik Corn Bread
/ dootlo 1 cup cornmeal
/2“" G“f #W 1 cup wheat flour
% m > i U] Y teaspoon baking soda
3 bi Cuh Jaﬁﬁ. Y2 teaspoon salt

"("“‘% o 1 cup milk
kﬁ _/ Y cup molasses

Combine the first four ingredients and then stir in the milk and
molasses. When the mixture is combined, pat it into a greased 8-in. pan

(it will be very thick) and bake at 400°F for 20-25 minutes or until the
cornbread bounces back when lightly touched.
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